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FEDERAL "ELECTION COMMISSION

The above-described material was removed from this
file pursuant to the following exemption provided in the
Freedom of Information Act, 5 U.S.C. Section 552(b):

(1) Classified Information

-A

(2) Int-ernal rules and
practices

(3) Exempted by other
statute

(4) Trade secrets and
commercial or
fi nancial information

7

(6) Personal privacy

(7) Investigatory
files

(8) Bank-ing
In formation

(9) Well Information
(geographic or
geophysical)

(5) Internal Doculments

Signed j) I C
d at e JJvT q

FEC 9-21-77

rAO1



DATE: NOVEMBER 2, 1978

TRANSMITTAL TIME
TO WESTERN UNION: 1:00 pm

VIA TELEGRAM

THE COMMISSION HAS RECETVED A COMPLAINT FROM THE

NATIONAL RIGHT TO WORK COMMITTEE WHICH ALLEGES THAT

YOU HAVE VIOLATED 2 U.S.C. !;141a(a) (2) (A) and §441(a) (f)

OF THE FEDERAL ELECTION CAMPAIGN ACT.

THE COMMISSION HAS DETERMINED THAT ON THE BASIS OF

Til: INFORMATION IN THE COMPLAINT THERE IS NO REASON TO

B:iIEVE THAT A VIOLATION OF ANY STATUTE WITHIN ITS

JURISDICTION HAS BEEN COIIMITTED. ACCORDINGLY, T117

COM'ISSION INTENDS TO CLOSE ITS FILE ON THIl"2

A LETTER AND COPY OF THE CO:PLI. '

SINCERELY,

ILLIAM C. OLDAKER
GEt ELL COU*NSEL
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FEDERALI ELECTION COMMISSION

I.1  5 K II I .W .

November 2, 1978

CERTIFIED MAIL
RETURN RECEIPT REQUESTED

Baucus '78 Committee
Jon Ellingson
610 Western Bank Building
Missoula, Mi. 59801

Re: MUR 800

De)ar Mr. F]lingson:

I am forwardinq for your information the encloseld
',0,1- 1 in whih ,,as rece ived I th'e Corimission

P C c~mrn J sion faD. e-t> ..> -  th.- . 'Cox-'P thy, .asii.

I ' i C)o!-Jtio 01, C 011 111 '.MmL. wlhi -n

. C -1 ']] : " r i Z i r O ( 0- 2 t o C Oi t 1 L . o' J h: . x :m t o, } .

/ 1 /

.... -o closi- .its '"i i:' o ....
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Ci7i. C.
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FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION
1325 K S IRI E NW.
WASHING ION,f).C. 20463

CERTIFIED MAIL
RETURN RECEIPT REQUESTED

Messrs. Reed Larson & Henry L. W
National Right to Work Committee
8316 Arlington Boulevard
Suite 600
Fairfax, Virginia 22038

November 2, 1978

alther

Re: MUR 800(78)
Congressman Max Baucus
Baucus '78 Co,mittee

Dear r, :;irsr rson c,

ih "ecirfi Liectie, .."sion ha:; revie!.,,ed the
tions o ,ou- comolai,. det.l OctobL1er 30, 1i/b, and

.has (e' 'inot-h-t on the basis of the info ,,. ti n youprvided theo is no reason to he]1 .ievo tiat a v o ation
of Eh r e Cira] Elici-ion Campain Act of 1971, as :ende

t(1c "Act") h)a s been co.mm, itted

Tn vaur craml you based your al lea,
0 Coonden ,t hao vlo Qated the Act on the legal
.. A.. .-. C C and the PA Cs of thE va -i

w a ich ar le Feh e s of the A L-CIO are aff iIi at
r 0. no out aware, thi ', .I 1 .-7 i .ra i .  by

V 3J.i L to Krl CoyJ tte in an earl er co:n 0at
C .5:5 5(7() In that matter , t.e (?nur inaJon

t
021.': * 7:L, ,- :'. ,; V . c i ]?r es "den 3: " 'a, r e,., h]a , h b

f. .t

j 1~~

ion thL
premlisi that
ous un ions
cd As you
the Natilonal
nft, (C inated

"0

r('aa.,;;Jrl;aCAarl thO Ln~u 1fj~.
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In your complaint, you do not allege any instance of
where political committees set up by a single international
union and its local unions have made contributions to the
respondent in excess of the $5,000 limitation. Neither
do you allege any instance of where political committees
set up by the AFL-CIO and its state and local central
bodies have made contributions to the respondent
in excess of the $5,000 limitation. If you have informa-
tion that such excessive contributions have been made,
you may bring them to the Commisssion's attention through
another complaint.

Should additional information come to your
attention which you believe establishes a violation of
the Act, please contact me.

S n c e '<'..

o r



BMRE THE FERAL EECTION OMMSSION

In the Matter of )
MUR 800

Cong. Max Baucus)
Baucus '78 Cm.)

CERTIFICATION

I, Marjorie W. Emmns, Secretary to the Federal Election

OCmmission, do hereby certify that on Novedber 2, 1978, the Ccmnission,

meeting in an Executive Session at which a quorum was present, determined

by a vote of 6-0 to adopt the recmeniation of the General Counsel to

take the following actions in the above-captioned matter:

1. Find no reason to believe the Federal Election Campaign Act,
as amended, has been violated.

2. Close the file and send the letters attached to the First
General Counsel's Report.

Attest:

Date Marjorie W. Emmons
8cretary to the Comission



ERAL ELECTION COMISSION
1325 K Street, N.W.

ashington, D.C. 20463

FIRST GENERAL COUNSEL'S REPORT

DATE AND TIME OF TRANSMITTAL
BY OGC TO TIE COMISSION

MUR NO. A0O0
DATE COMPLAINT RECIE IVED
By 0CC. 10/30/78
STAFF -

M TER Al. . •

COMPLAINANT'S NAME:

RESPOlNDEN'T ' S NAME:

National Right to Work Committee (NRWC),
Reed Larson, President, and Henry L. Walther

2 U.S.C.

........:UT: , P <,c;:. (NiUCKED1

§441a (a) , §441a (f)

MUR 354

3 , 1 7 .
.. L ... 1. ' t candidLate and hi

c.. C.... .. .. 9 ,) c.) iv" acc, ti.ni,f . ,ou s 1ni , "
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This issue is identical to one raised by the same
complainants in MUR 354(76). In MUR 354 the Commission
found that AFL-CIO COPE PCC and the PACs of the various
unions which are members of the AFL-CIO are not affiliated.
Further the Commission found that under 2 U.S.C. § 441a(a)(5)
the AFL-CIO COPE PCC may contribute up to $5,000 per
election and that each individual international union PAC
may contribute up to $5,000 per election. NRWC was notified
of the Commission's findings on December 21, 1977 (-see
attached letter).

The Commission's findings were based upon the Commission
regulations 11 C.F.R. 100.14(c) (2) (i) (B) and (C), 11 C.F.R.
110.3(a) (1) (ii) (B) and (C) ; and upon the legislative history of
the Act which states:

"All of the political cozmittees set up by a
sinale international union and its local unions
are treated as a single political com.nittee.

"All of the political committees set up by tlhe
AF1L-CIO and its state and( local cen tral bod,.
are treated as a sinqle political committce.

(EhCs addl o T)

(ton e. o . ! 5"7 )L

"m1.., th Co 3S10ission concludes , as did in 'UR .

.,._ COP.!E PCC and L:he PiACs. of the various unions which
are:vhe..'r. of thT AFL-CIO are not subjcct to one con-
tcibi on .i_ iiitation of $5,000.

.- L2nftL d) not al1]_c.,e an\ inrOtO, of 

and'c itc local unon hav rmade 'i ...

LD s LU~ '

ID '7 -'~ 1 r'C' t.''.. ' ' I i,1; :-3 y " L
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RECOMMENDATI ON

1. Find no reason to believe the Act has been violated.

2. Close. the file and send the attached letters to

complainant and respondent.

ATTACIIMENTS :

1. Complaint
2. 12/21/77 letter to NRWC

"-¢ 3. Proposed Letters

tp,

N,
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FEDERAl ELECTION COMMISSION

1325 K S1RI L I N.W.
WAsHING1OND(.. 20463

December 21, .1977

C 'IFIED MATL
RL"Y'URN R.CEIPT Id QUESTED

Mr. Andrew Hare
Vice-President National Right to Work

C om-mi t te e
8316 Arlington B3vd., Suite 500
Fairfax, Virginia 22038

Dear Mr. Hare:

On December 20, 1977, the
notiiedi you of thce Co:imnission'
aJanst the 7AdL-CIO with regard

bv you "4 (76) and the
tion of that c II. With regoar.

of o cr n t tr:. sed in .our
% .. >:; ."t ..._: " 3, i§K77, to ,o" 7 .... ,
-~~~~~~~~ I.... f,-, ... U C,;. ..%S I L

R1: MUR 354 (76)

Federal Election Commission
s decision to institute suitto certain practices raised
termini.ation of its inve.tic:g-

to the Commission's dismissal
cor)olaint, as noted in my

C :: . ....si-n conc i u . .haL

..'-,,..ti a n -t1.e Cf the AFL-CIO

(T .. uv on In)v uD

0 . I.! ( ) from he2r job
r: 0 e , /-...o ) Eake-Cs its

,::p:.. £[t r<s o r r egi a _.on andi r et out-

C C ) C,

C
c...: ... ,:? t ) d '.r[.v e a n i c :-".,tu zi -t i o 2 it

i~
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(3) The AFL-CIO General Fund transferred
$600,000 to the COPE Educational Fund
(between July 1, 1974 and June 30, 1975)
and the COPE Educat.ional Fund transferred
$385,000 to the COPE Political Contributions
Committee (between January 1.975 and May 1976),
thereby putting dues money (from the General
Fund) into a reporting fund which makes
contributions to federal candidates (COPE-PCC) ;

(4) The Act i,; discrin.inatorily unfair if
construed to ::cept for purposes of the
contribution . i mits (2 U.S.C. §441a(a) (5))
the constitue-t union members of the
AFL-CIO as (.)ar-atI e entities while treat-
ing the m e s of those unions as members
of the AFL-CIO, for purposes either of
co:nUliunication to them or of registration
and get-out-the-vote drives (2 U.S.C. §441b
(b) (2)).

The Cermission's conclusic
taken wiith reard t o issues (1fecllo;:inu, a-,alvss

Co::n? ai ant rconn i <es
4 .-. ( b, (2) (A) c nts

- < i f.,nICF!.L.i 1L; rn ro m
* .r- *3< . 'i- k )O._ ,

... . . - - "~ "4 ' L -!i

S..'. cm.
.- ~ ra(

in that no action should be
.), (2) and (4) rests on the

thani 2 U.S.C.
;,r : -a catecory

ti! ro;ocr- otIon of
tJ. {; "c ,: ::u:. ie.?, io n s

uc c na and
c." ee U.S. v.(1] ,T. :; , { .," m..a ie on

oK'I - U.S.C.

to(

7r~ 1o. t' 1-1 n C f.r1 e
k- t a \O0

1, 5. A", 1 C 0

rWrrh ; or e (I anrd
C~ * 4 .4--.
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any money spent for registration and get-"
out-the-vote work is, by definition, partisan
and thercfore not exempted from the definition
of contribution.

Complainant offers no specific evidence that
the AFL-CIO or AFL-CIO COPE, in seeking to
register voters or get people out to vote,
actually discr iminated on a partisan basis;
comnplainant:'s alllegations are all based
on the publ.ic record, mostly newspaper
articles, which dlescribe, without specifics,
contacts between various AFL-CIO and AFL-CIO
COPE.. officers and political workers and
Carter cam'paign personnel. The nexus of
the complaint is that, since the AFL-CIO
supported Carter/Mondale, and believed that
registratLion and jet-out--the-vot-e drives .
in certain areas would aid Carter/MIondale'

. and conducted those drives with those
Nbeliefs in mind, all of that activity must L ..
,C be seen as partisan.

. ].) J'h s - pa~ent ssuui.,ion by complainant ....
tY Lt a rv"istration -b-or cg '--ou~ttbvote, .. . drive"

-- .i;" IflJ-, pai san by 1xa~ eti:.L a ', L- icular
caida9 1ddis not borne out b'v t e statute.
T] o:]:Te i,' lot3 :ig in the~ setu.'e e. :upp:o rt

. , : .( L

(5.1 ~) A ) , ..:o rt t the .~g t i: 'r un on to ;end ..

, Lj.(

' "' ".:', -:{<", ( ) ( ' t ,] :: .. !.,' : }: ,- c ir
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evidence (or even allegations) that the driveswere conducted in a partisan fashion, thecomplaint does not seem to state any violation.Nor, since Congress exempted such communicationsand registration drives from the definition ofcontribution, would the Carter campaignIsacce)tance by coordination of the expenditures,S:'Oven, violate the prohibition againstfc]r rally funded candidates accepting privateconf ributions. 26 U.S.C. 99 003(b) (2).
(2) 'I'e undocuinented assertion that more thanthe 1nount reported was actually spent forPart i ;an communications is founded on thesC~ u <1 sum)ptions as those noted above; becausemon, spent on registration and get-out-the-y~t,, dlrives was "Partisan" in complainantvsall costs witi rard to t Sulbe r:';)-.rted. In view of the logic set forthahoy,, the comrplaint also does not seem tost .t cny 

v-iation.

( ) ":.o]ajn - v,',ests tY-a': -D sta -tut is-u-a l l u i if i t t l o s t h e c o n stitu e n t,r unios or the ALCIO to be treated as
c .O 

r " 
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and the members of its members is reflected in

the statutory history underlying 2 U.S.C. §441b

(b) (1)(A). Thus, the House Report on the Bill
stated:

"The present law permits the
to sol icit all AFL-CIO Union
make vluntCary contributions
politi jca cmmittee."

(11. Rep. No.
2d Sess. p.

AFL-CIO
members to
to COPE, its

94-917, 94th Cong.
8).

Congressma-n flays, during debate in 1974 on the
excmiiptions stated:

"Thus, the bill exempts communications by

membership organizations to their members
and by corporations to their stockholders
from the definition of expenditure. That
eemption, of course, includes conmunica-
tions hy a federated orqanization to its
mm.: on Lehalif of its affiliates utilizing
its , or affiliate's resourcs and personnel,
and ". a pD.1 -C 5L corporation on behalf of its
subs5iI LJ > ris."

(120 Cong. Rec. H. 10330
October 10, 1974 )

-- - - 1 -
L-_ L, 17 1. s

1-" Z.. I: : -' ]
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Second, complainant argues that if the AFL-CIO can

solicit members of its members, the statute does

not permit- the members to haive separate contribution

limits. As an initial matte'r, complainant's

insistence that the coimmlRunication provision and

the contribution limitation must be seen as identical

seem inappropriate. Sect]i n 441b(b) (2) places

conmunica tion and registrar ion and get-out-the-vote

drives outside the definit in of contribution and

ex pnditures. Thus, the i.:;ue as to the extent of
the AFL-C[0 comunications is severable from the
contributi.on issue. In any uvent, the Ccmrn.ssionls

conclusion that the statute was designed to set

separate contribution limits for the AFL-CIO and its

constituent member unions is based on legisli-4ve

hi.;tory.* Thus, the Confrence Report accompanying
the 1976 ame on'nts which added the non-proliferation

provisions here in question, pointedly stated:

"All of the political co:.u, nittees set up

bY a sinele international union and its
local unions (re treated as a sinpie political

f7aIc o,- -" t Uo- I.

t "..'-i!1 oC h -o i :.a om 't c s s t u '

Itreated as a n s -no_1' t4cl

-( 4

K ..... ...: ] }  k l l " ''' " []] I1[ [ # 1 [ Z% l- ". .

" 'I . -'. { t :_< . , . .. . . . . .. -

C,1 - ' " " 
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COMPLAINT FIZ EWI}H+HE FEIERAL ELECTIONI O MISSION 14 o()

October 30, 1978 •"-

Pursuant to 2 U.S.C. Section 437g(a)(1) , it1TN.tioIal Rig4 t to

Work Committee (NRWC) and Henry L. Walther, a federal voter and

citizen of Virginia, believe that Congressman Max Baucus and Baucus

'78, his principle campaign committee, have violated Section

441a(a)(2)(A) of the Federal Election Campaign Act of 1971, as

amended, by accepting illegal contributions in excess of the $5,000

limit, per election, from a single multi-candidate political action

committee or group of such committees controlled by a common source.

During the period of the 1978 elections, Congressman Baucus and his

political committee have accepted $54,750.00 in illegal contributions

from AFL-CIO controlled PACs.

Under 2 U.S.C. 441a(a)(5), "all contributions made by a political

committee established or financed or maintained or controlled by any

corporation, labor organization, or any other person, including any

parent, subsidiary, branch, division, department, or local unit of

such corporation, labor organization, or any other person, or by any

group of such persons, shall be considered to have been made by

a single political committee..." (emphasis added). It is clear from

the past statements of Mr. Meany and Mr. Barkan, his political

staffer, that the political efforts of the AFL-CIO and its member

unions, are coordinated and commonly directed in exactly the way

contemplated by the statute's prohibition. The various AFL-CIO union

political PACs are clearly covered by the common $5,000 limit. Their

total of $54,750.00 in contributions to Congressman Baucus exceeds

this amount for both the primary and general elections and is thus an

illegal contribution and a serious violation of the law.

The 1978 campaign has been witnessing an incredible display of

organized labor's disregard for the law. The AFL-CIO treats its 14

million-member federation as one organization for the purposes of

fundraising for its main PAC, COPE-PCC, for its multi-million dollar

registration campaigns, for its get-out-the-vote drives, and for its

massive political communications program, while on the other hand, it

attempts to evade contribution limits on all its sub-PACs by treating

them as separate political units. This fiction flies not only in the

face of the provision of the non-proliferation section of the law,

441a(a)(5), but it also violates one of the basic purposes of the



original Federal Cori*t Practices Act, and the nger contribution

limits. That is to keep the power of large monolithic units and their

attendant corruption and undue influence out of the federal election

process.

Big Labor's ability to promise its handpicked candidates for

federal office $20,000 or $40,000 or even $100,000 in cash per

election, while all other interest groups are limited to $5,000, makes

a mockery of fairness and election reform. Organized labor's use of

compulsory membership dues money to channel these PAC funds and pay

for their solicitation makes this practice that much more inde-

fensible. Congressman Baucus's receipt of such illegal excessive

monies represents the real threat of corruption and undue influence

aimed at by 2 U.S.C. Section 441a(a)(2)(A) and Section 441a(a)(5). We

strongly ask the Commission to take immediate action to stop this

abuse before the November 7 election. The American people deserve a

Congress that is not "bought" by any special interest group.

For the ease of the Commission, we have excerpted all the contri-

butions made by AFL-CIO union PACs to Congressman Baucus for both the

primary and the general election of 1978, to date. They are listed in

the Appendix following.

Reed Larson, President, The National Right to Work Committee,

8316 Arlington Boulevard, Suite 600, Fairfax, Virginia 22038, and

Henry L. Walther, a federal voter and citizen of Virginia, being first

duly sworn both say that they have read the foregoing complaint and

know the contents thereof, and that the same is true on information

and belief. This complaint is not being filed on behalf of, or at the

request or suggestion of, any candidate for federal office.

Reed Larson

Henr . Walther

Subscribed and sworn to before me this - day of

_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ , 1978.

Notary Public I
My commission expires~ a ~\ b, ...



* ' MAXBAOS

N AME OFP PAC

AFL-CIO COPE Political Contributions Com

AFL-CIO COPE Political Contributions Com.

DATE $ AMOUNT

6/15 /7R 000 n
- -9 9

8/15/78 5.000-00
Ame-ican Federation of Teachers, Com. on 1/1/78 -

Pol. Ed. Teachers American Federation 3/31/78 1,000.00
Carpenters' Legislative Improvement Com.
Carpenters & Joiners of America 3/27/78" 1500.00
Carpenters' Legislative Improvement Com.
Carpenters & Joiners of America 7/5/78 1,000.00
Committee on Federal Employee Political
Education Gov't Employees' Amer. Fed. of 1/27/78 100.00
Committee on Federal Employee Political
Education Gov't Employees' Amer. Fed. of 8/24/78 100.00
CWA-COPE Political Contributions Committee
Communications Workers of America 5/28/78 100.00
Engineers Political & Education Committee
Engineers Int'l Union' Operating 7/10/78 2,500.00
Laborers' Political league
Laborers' International Union of N. A. 7/6/78 2,000.00
H&RE & BIU TIP "To Insure Progress"
AKA H & RE & RIU COPE Hot.Rest.Emp.Bartend. 5/8/78 500.00
ILTWu campaign Committee
Ladies Garment Workers' International Union 8/8/78 1,000.00
iLEWu campaign Committee
Ladies Garment Workers' International Union 9/7/78 100.00
international rotnernooa of Elec. WorKers
Com. On Pol. Ed. Elec. Workers' Int'l Brot. 7/31/78 2,000.00
intni Molders & Alliea worKers union.AFL=-
CIO COPE Fund Molders & Allied Workers Un. 3/31/78 300.00
Public Employees Organized to Promote Leg.
Equality QCC Emp. Amer.Fed. of State, Ctv. 3/6/78 500.00
Public Employees Organized to Promote Leg.
Equality QCC Emp.Amer.Fed. of State,Cty. 5/9/78 200.00
Retail Clerks International Union
Retail Clerks Int'l Association 4/20/78 5,000.00
Sheet Metal Workers, Int'l Assoc. Pol. Act.
League Sheet Metal Workers' Int'l Union 5/31/78 300.00
Railway Labor Executives' Assoc Political
League Railway Labor Executives' Ass'n. 5/78 200.00
Railway Clerks Political League
Railway, Airline & Steamship Clerks 7/12/78 1,500.00
Railway Clerks Political League
Railway Airline & Steamship Clerks 8/11/78 1,000.00
OCAW Political and Legislative League
Oil, Chem & Atomic WKRS Int'l Union 8/78. 250.00
Machinists Non-Partisan Political League
Machinists and Aerospace Workers 7/21/78 5,000.00
Maintenance of Way Political League
Maintenance of Way Employees 5/78 200.00
National Rural Letter Carriers Association
Pol. Ed. Com. Letter Carriers Assn. Nat'l 2/23/78 200.00
United Steelworkers of America Political
Action Fund. Steel Workers of America Un. 6/21/78 5,000.00
Transportation Political Education League
Transportation Union' United 7/78 2,000.00
International Molders & Allied Workers Un.
AFL-CIO-CLC Cope Fund Molders & Allid Wkr 7/28/78 300.00
Pol. Fund Com. of the American Postal Wrkrs.
Union AFL-CIO Postal Workers Union 9/26/78 100.00
Seafarers Political Activity Donation
"SPAD" Seafarers Int'l Union of N. A. 7/2/78 5,000.00
Maintenance of Way Political League
Maintenance of Way Employees 9/8/78 200.00
Nat'l Rural Letter Carriers Assoc.Pol.Ed.
Committee Letter Carriers Ass'n. Nat'l 7/17/78 200.00
Nat'l Rural Letter Carriers Assoc. Pol. Ed.....Committee Letter Carriers Ass'n Nat'l Rural 8/21/78 200.00
Nat'l Rural Letter Carriers Assoc. Pol. Ed.
Committee Letter Carriers Ass'n Nat'l Rural 9/21/78 200.00
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Air Line Pilots Assn. PAC
Entl. Air Line Pilots Asso. 2/15/78 2,500.00

" 5/25/78 2,500.00

TOTAL__ _ 54,750.00

t______________ _______________________

_ _ __ _ __ _ _ I _ _ _ _ _ _
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